1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	SHUB LAW FIRM LLC Jonathan Shub (State Bar No. 237708) jshub@shublawyers.com Kevin Laukaitis (Pro Hac Vice to file) klaukaitis@shublawyers.com 134 Kings Highway E F1 2 Haddonfield, NJ 08033 Telephone: (856) 772-7200 Facsimile: (856) 210-9088 SHEEHAN & ASSOCIATES, P.C. Spencer Sheehan (Pro Hac Vice to file) spencer@spencersheehan.com 60 Cuttermill Rd Ste 409 Great Neck, NY 11021 Telephone: (516) 268-7080 Facsimile: (516) 234-7800 Counsel for Plaintiff and the Proposed Class UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT NORTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA				
1415	ANGELA FARVE, individually and on behalf of all others similarly situated,	Case No.:			
16171819	Plaintiff, vs. BLUE DIAMOND GROWERS, Defendant.	CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT Demand for Jury Trial			
202122232425262728	Plaintiff Angela Farve ("Plaintiff"), on behalf of herself and others similarly situated brings this Class Action Complaint against Blue Diamond Growers ("Defendant"), and on the basis of personal knowledge, information and belief, and investigation of counsel, alleges as follows: 1 Class Action Complaint				

INTRODUCTION

- 1. Defendant manufactures distributes, markets, labels and sells Vanilla Almondmilk under their Almond Breeze brand ("Product").
- 2. The Product is available to consumers from retail and online stores of third-parties and is sold in sizes including cartons of 32 OZ and 64 OZ.
 - 3. During the Class Period, Plaintiff purchased the Product in California.
- 4. Defendant falsely and misleadingly markets the Product to consumers as having a primary characterizing flavor of "Vanilla" that comes from vanilla beans, from the vanilla plant.



 In fact, the Product contains undisclosed artificial vanilla flavors and less vanilla than consumers expect.

⁴

for true vanilla flavorings.

- 28. The vanilla bean is not consumed by itself it is heated in the sun for weeks until being soaked in alcohol solution and its flavor constituents extracted (vanilla extract).
- 29. Vanilla's "desirable flavor attributes...make it one of the most common ingredients used in the global marketplace, whether as a primary flavor, as a component of another flavor, or for its desirable aroma qualities."²
- 30. Though the main flavor molecule in vanilla is vanillin, it contains over 200 compounds including volatile constituents such as acids, ethers, alcohols, acetals, heterocyclics, phenolics, hydrocarbons, esters and carbonyls.
- 31. The popularity of vanilla in the 19th century led to the isolation of the vanillin molecule from vanilla, which became the first artificial flavor.
- 32. This availability of low-cost vanillin resulted in companies adulterating foods purporting to contain vanilla, by either including no vanilla or a trace or *de minimis* amount, boosted by added synthetic vanillin from tree bark or petroleum by-products.
- 33. However, vanillin separated from the rest of the vanilla bean lacked the other components of vanilla's flavor.
- 34. Consumer and industry groups have long sought to prevent this deception because consumers want vanilla in vanilla flavored products to come from a real source, i.e., from vanilla beans from the vanilla plant.
- 35. The earliest attempt to prevent fraud in vanilla products was the U.S. Pharmacopeia standard, which required a specific weight of vanilla beans as the source for vanilla extract.

² Daphna Havkin-Frenkel, F.C. Bellanger, Eds., Handbook of Vanilla Science and Technology, Wiley, 2018; Kristiana Lalou <u>Queen of flavors: Vanilla rises above transparency concerns to lead category</u>, Food Ingredients First, Sept. 3, 2019 (describing vanilla as "versatile").

- 36. The focus was on the weight of actual vanilla beans, because this would prevent companies from adding vanillin to a small amount of vanilla beans.
- 37. Consumer deception continued into the 20th century, with government entities regularly penalizing companies that deceived consumers by labeled their products and foods as "vanilla" but were little more than vanillin with caramel coloring.
- 38. Congress later directed the Food and Drug Administration ("FDA") to establish standards to prevent the marketing of foods from which traditional constituents were removed and new or different (often cheaper and artificial) ingredients were substituted.
- 39. The FDA established strict rules regarding use of the term "vanilla" on the labels of food products, so consumers would not be buying food with small amounts of vanilla and lots of vanillin if they were not told of it.
- 40. Vanilla is not subject to the general flavor regulations because vanilla is (1) uniquely vulnerable to being adulterated, (2) the most widely used flavor and (3) one of the most expensive flavors.
- 41. The vanilla labeling requirements are designed "so that consumers can determine whether the product is flavored with a vanilla flavoring derived from vanilla beans, in whole or in part, or whether the food's vanilla flavor is provided by flavorings not derived from vanilla beans" such as vanillin.
- 42. The FDA regulations regarding vanilla effectively establish custom and practice in the industry so that consumers' experience with that custom and practice primes them to infer certain qualities and attributes from products labeled in a certain consistent way.
- 43. According to the flavor industry trade group, FEMA, where a product's front label representation is "Vanilla" without qualification, such as "flavored," "artificial flavors" or "with other natural flavors," it "lead[s] consumers to believe that it is flavored with vanilla extract, or

Class Action Complaint

name of the food on the principal display panel or panels of the label shall be accompanied by the common or usual name of the characterizing flavor, e.g., 'vanilla'").

- 61. Fifty-eight (58) percent of respondents indicated they would be less likely to purchase the Product if they had known the vanilla flavoring did not come from the vanilla plant.
- 62. Consumers will not feel they need to double check the ingredient list because the lack of any front label qualifying terms gives them the impression that the flavor is only from the characterizing ingredient of vanilla beans.
- 63. Nevertheless, the fine print back panel ingredient listing of "Natural Flavors" will not disclose to consumers that (1) the Product contains artificial vanilla, viz, vanillin, which provides much or most of the vanilla taste and (2) the amount of real vanilla in the Products is de minimis and/or less than expected.

INGREDIENTS: ALMONDMILK (FILTERED WATER ALMONDS), CANE SUGAR, CALCIUM CARBONATE, NATURAL FLAVORS, SEA SALT, POTASSIUM CITRATE, SUNFLOWER LECITHIN, GELLAN GUM. VITAMIN A PALMITATE, VITAMIN D2, D-ALPHA-TOCOPHEROL (NATURAL VITAMIN E).

INGREDIENTS: ALMONDMILK (FILTERED WATER, ALMONDS), CANE SUGAR, CALCIUM CARBONATE, NATURAL FLAVORS, SEA SALT, POTASSIUM CITRATE, SUNFLOWER LECITHIN, GELLAN GUM, VITAMIN A PALMITATE, VITAMIN D2, D-ALPHA-TOCOPHEROL (NATURAL VITAMIN E).

64. This conclusion is supported by gas chromatography-mass spectrometry, a method of targeted a method of targeted and non-targeted detection which can identify the range of volatile compounds responsible for vanilla's flavor with minimal to no degradation.

27

1	MS	Area		Conc.
1	Scan #		Peak Assignment	PPM w/w
	284		acetic acid	0.029
2	353	9618	propionic acid	0.003
	388	10498	acetoin	0.003
3	439		butyric acid	0.008
3	449		hexanal	0.023
	538		hexyl alcohol	0.003
4	545		pentanoic acid	0.014
	565		2-heptanone	0.009
_	581		heptanal	0.003
5	589		pentyl acetate	0.010
	603		dimethyl sulfone	0.013 0.207
6	663		hexanoic acid	0.207
O	673			0.008
_	680		6-methyl-5-hepten-2-one	0.008
7	690		2-pentylfuran	0.030
	707		octanal	0.030
8	711 737		2-ethyl-5-methylpyrazine	0.012
O	737		cyclotene	0.012
			limonene	0.070
9	750 759		benzyl alcohol 3-methyl-2(5H)-furanone	0.002
	768		heptanoic acid	0.073
10	778		2-acetylpyrrole	0.033
10	770		gamma-hexalactone	0.042
	807		trans-2-octenal	0.019
11	816		nonanal	0.072
	841			1,277
10	870		octanoic acid	0.276
12	875		benzoic acid	0.064
	917		2-methoxy-4-methylphenol (p-creosol)	0.016
13	922		decanal	0.015
13	933		naphthalene-d8 (internal standard)	1.000
	968		nonanoic acid	0.512
14	1014	270717	2,4-decadienal	0.072
	1032		glyceryl triacetate (Triacetin)	0.014
15	1038		2,4-decadienal	0.166
13	1061	595717	decanoic acid	0.159
	1076	441785	alpha-hydroxybenzeneacetic acid (Mandelic acid)	0.118
16	1091	327324	p-hydroxybenzaldehyde	0.087
	1138	127906368	vanillin	34.134
17	1170	8898018	4-hydroxy-3-methoxybenzyl alcohol (vanillyl alcohol)	2.375
1 /	1180	136776	gamma-decalactone	0.037
	1203	136621	acetovanillone	0.036
18	1213	71076	veratraldehyde	0.019
10	1224	29855	vanillyl acetate	0.008
10	1232		lauric acid	0.057
19	1263	12285	dihydroactinidiolide	0.003
			Total (excluding internal standard)	40.27
20				
20				
0.1	65. The	e results re	eveal that the Product contains an abnor	mal excess of vani
21				
	I			

illin relative to the profile of minor components in vanilla, which is a strong indicator it contains added vanillin from non-vanilla sources.

24

25

26

23

22

When vanillin is present from vanilla beans, it will be accompanied by other 66. compounds present in vanilla in small amounts, such as p-hydroxybenzoic acid and vanillic acid.

27

28

The skewed ratios of vanillin to other compounds and non-detection of certain 67.

markers does not mean the Products do not contain vanilla.

- 68. Assuming that all vanillin in the Product came from vanilla beans, it would be expected to contain p-hydroxybenzoic acid and vanillic acid at levels above the threshold for detection, based on their relative amounts in a sample of real vanilla.
- 69. That the Product does not indicate these compounds is indicative of added vanillin and less vanilla than consumers expect.
- 70. Further support for the presence of added vanillin is based on the typical usage of vanilla at not greater than one percent of the total weight of ingredients.
- 71. The absolute amount of vanillin in such a percentage would be approximately 0.1% or 10 PPM.
- 72. However, the vanillin content of 34.134 PPM is over three times greater than if a standard amount of vanilla was used.
 - 73. The added vanillin requires the front label to state "artificially flavored."
- 74. Consumers are misled by the front label and unable to cure the deception because the Product's ingredient list only indicates it is flavored by "Natural Flavors."
- 75. Defendant's marketing and promotion of the Product is designed to and does deceive, mislead, and defraud plaintiff and consumers.
- 76. Defendant sold more of the Product and at higher prices than it would have in the absence of this misconduct, resulting in additional profits at the expense of consumers.
- 77. The value of the Product that plaintiff purchased and consumed was materially less than its value as represented by defendant.
- 78. Had plaintiff and class members known the truth, they would not have bought the Products or would have paid less for it.

79. As a result of the false and misleading labeling, the Product is sold at a premium price, approximately no less \$3.79 for cartons of 32 OZ and \$5.19 for cartons of 64 OZ, excluding tax, compared to other similar products represented in a non-misleading way, and higher than the price of the Product if represented in a non-misleading way.

Reliance and Economic Injury

- 80. When purchasing the Product, Plaintiff sought a product with a materially greater amount of vanilla than it actually contained.
- 81. When purchasing the Product, Plaintiff sought a product that was natural in that its vanilla flavor was provided exclusively by vanilla beans.
- 82. Plaintiff read and relied on Defendant's false and misleading product name, statements, statement of identity and misleading claims in its labeling and advertising of the product.
- 83. Plaintiff also saw and relied on statements on the Product, which misleadingly reference only "vanilla" even though much, if not all, of the vanilla flavoring comes from non-vanilla sources.
- 84. Plaintiff purchased the Product, and paid more for it than she would have paid believing the product had qualities she sought (e.g., only vanilla flavor from vanilla beans from the vanilla plant) based on the misleading labeling and marketing; but the product was unsatisfactory to her because those representations were false and misleading.
- 85. The Product costs significantly more per ounce compared to other similar products which lack prominent and unqualified front label claims of "Vanilla."
- 86. Plaintiff paid more for the Product than she would have had she not been misled by the false and misleading labeling and advertising complained of herein.
 - 87. For these reasons, the Product was worth less than what plaintiff paid for them.
 - 88. Plaintiff lost money as a result of Defendant's deception in that Plaintiff did not

has the capacity to generate common answers that will drive resolution of this action. They predominate over any questions affecting only individual class members. Common questions of law and fact include, but are not limited to, the following:

- 98. Whether Defendant contributed to, committed, or is responsible for the conduct alleged herein;
 - 99. Whether Defendant's conduct constitutes the violations of law alleged herein;
- 100. Whether Defendant acted willfully, recklessly, negligently, or with gross negligence in the violations of laws alleged herein;
 - 101. Whether Class Members are entitled to injunctive relief; and
 - 102. Whether Class Members are entitled to restitution and damages.
- 103. By seeing the name, labeling, display and marketing of the Product, and by purchasing the Product, all Class Members were subject to the same wrongful conduct.
- 104. Absent Defendant's material deceptions, misstatements and omissions, Plaintiff and other Class Members would not have purchased the Product.
- 105. Typicality. Plaintiff's claims are typical of the claims of the Class, respectively, because she purchased the Product and was injured thereby. The claims of Plaintiff and other Class Members are based on the same legal theories and arise from the same false, misleading and unlawful conduct.
- 106. Adequacy. Plaintiff is an adequate representative of the Class because her interests do not conflict with those of other Class Members. Each Class Member is entitled to damages reflecting a similar and discrete purchase or purchases that each Class Member made. Plaintiff has retained competent and experienced class action counsel, who intends to prosecute this action vigorously. The Class Members' interests will be fairly and adequately protected by Plaintiff and her counsel.

- 107. Superiority. A class action is superior to other available methods for the fair and efficient adjudication of this controversy, because joinder of all Class Members is impracticable. The amount at stake for each consumer, while significant, is such that individual litigation would be inefficient and cost-prohibitive. Plaintiff anticipates no difficulty in the management of this action as a class action.
- 108. This Court should certify a class under Rule 23(b)(2) and (b)(3) because Defendant has acted or refused to act on grounds that apply generally to the Class, by making illegal, unfair, misleading and deceptive representations and omissions regarding the Product.
- 109. Notice to the Class. Plaintiff anticipates that this Court can direct notice to the Class, to be effectuated by publication in major media outlets and the Internet.

FIRST CLAIM (ON BEHALF OF THE CALIFORNIA CLASS) (Violation of California Business & Professions Code §§ 17200 et seq. –

iolation of California Business & Professions Code §§ 17200 *et seq.* Unlawful Conduct Prong of the UCL)

- 110. Plaintiff incorporates by reference all allegations contained in the complaint as if fully set forth herein. California Business & Professions Code section 17200 ("UCL") prohibits any "unlawful, unfair or fraudulent business act or practice."
- 111. The acts, omissions, misrepresentations, practices, and non-disclosures of Whole Foods, as alleged herein, constitute "unlawful" business acts and practices in that they violate the Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act ("FFDCA") and its implementing regulations, including, at least, the following sections:
- 112. 21 U.S.C. § 343, which deems food misbranded when the label contains a statement that is "false or misleading in any particular," with "misleading" defined to "take[] into account (among other things) not only representations made or suggested by statement, word, design, device, or any combination thereof, but also the extent to which the labeling or advertising fails to reveal facts material";

- 113. 21 U.S.C. § 321(n), which states the nature of a false and misleading advertisement;
- 114. 21 C.F.R. § 101.18(b), which prohibits true statements about ingredients that are misleading in light of the presence of other ingredients;
 - 115. 21 C.F.R. Part 169, Food Dressings and Flavorings;
- 116. 21 C.F.R. § 101.22(i), which sets forth a framework to truthfully identify the source of a product's flavor; and
 - 117. 21 C.F.R. § 102.5 which prohibits misleading common or usual names.
- 118. Defendant's conduct is further "unlawful" because it violates the California False Advertising Law ("FAL") and the Consumer Legal Remedies Act ("CLRA"), as discussed in the claims below.
- 119. Defendant's conduct also violates the California Sherman Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Law, Cal. Health & Saf. Code section 109875, et seq. ("Sherman Law"), including, at least, the following sections:
 - 120. Section 110100 (adopting all FDA regulations as state regulations);
- 121. Section 110290 ("In determining whether the labeling or advertisement of a food ... is misleading, all representations made or suggested by statement, word, design, device, sound, or any combination of these, shall be taken into account. The extent that the labeling or advertising fails to reveal facts concerning the food ... or consequences of customary use of the food ... shall also be considered.");
- 122. Section 110390 ("It is unlawful for any person to disseminate any false advertisement of any food.... An advertisement is false if it is false or misleading in any particular.");
- 123. Section 110395 ("It is unlawful for any person to manufacture, sell, deliver, hold, or offer for sale any food ... that is falsely advertised.");
 - 124. Section 110398 ("It is unlawful for any person to advertise any food, drug, device,

or cosmetic that is adulterated or misbranded.");

- 125. Section 110400 ("It is unlawful for any person to receive in commerce any food ... that is falsely advertised or to deliver or proffer for delivery any such food...."); and
- 126. Section 110660 ("Any food is misbranded if its labeling is false or misleading in any particular.").
- 127. Each of the challenged statements made and actions taken by Whole Foods violates the FFDCA, the CLRA, the FAL, and the Sherman Law, and therefore violates the "unlawful" prong of the UCL.
- 128. Defendant leveraged its deception to induce Plaintiff and members of the Class to purchase products that were of lesser value and quality than advertised. Defendant's deceptive advertising caused Plaintiff and members of the Class to suffer injury in fact and to lose money or property, as it denied them the benefit of the bargain when they decided to purchase the Product over other products that are less expensive, and contain virtually the same or immaterially different amounts of vanilla.
- 129. Had Plaintiff and the members of the Class been aware of Defendant's false and misleading advertising tactics, they would not have purchased the Product at all or would have paid less than what they did for it.
- 130. In accordance with California Business & Professions Code section 17203, Plaintiff seeks an order enjoining Defendant from continuing to conduct business through unlawful, unfair, and/or fraudulent acts and practices and to commence a corrective advertising campaign.
- 131. Plaintiff also seeks an order for the disgorgement and restitution of all monies from the sale of the Product that was unjustly acquired through acts of unlawful, unfair and/or fraudulent competition.

SECOND CLAIM

(Violation of California Business & Professions Code §§ 17200, et seq. – Unfair and Fraudulent Conduct Prong of the UCL)

- 132. Plaintiff incorporates by reference all of the allegations of the preceding paragraphs as if fully set forth herein.
- 133. California Business & Professions Code section 17200 prohibits any "unlawful, unfair or fraudulent business act or practice."
- 134. The false and misleading labeling of the Product, as alleged herein, constitutes "unfair" business acts and practices because such conduct is immoral, unscrupulous, and offends public policy. Further, the gravity of Defendant's conduct outweighs any conceivable benefit of such conduct.
- 135. The acts, omissions, misrepresentations, practices, and non-disclosures of Defendant as alleged herein constitute "fraudulent" business acts and practices, because Defendant's conduct is false and misleading to Plaintiff and members of the Class.
- 136. Defendant's labeling and marketing of the Product is likely to deceive Class Members about the flavoring source and amount of vanilla in the Product.
- 137. Defendant either knew or reasonably should have known that the claims and statements on the labels of the Product were likely to deceive consumers.
- 138. In accordance with California Business & Professions Code section 17203, Plaintiff seeks an order enjoining Defendant from continuing to conduct business through unlawful, unfair, and/or fraudulent acts and practices and to commence a corrective advertising campaign.
- 139. Plaintiff also seeks an order for the disgorgement and restitution of all monies from the sale of the Product that were unjustly acquired through acts of unlawful, unfair and/or fraudulent competition.

<u>THIRD CLAIM</u> 1 (ON BEHALF OF THE CALIFORNIA CLASS) 2 (Violation of California Business & Professions Code §§ 17500, et seq. – False and Misleading Advertising) 3 140. Plaintiff incorporates by reference all allegations contained in the complaint as if 4 fully set forth herein. 5 141. California False Advertising Law (Cal. Business & Professions Code sections 17500 6 7 and 17508) prohibits "mak[ing] any false or misleading advertising claim." 8 142. As alleged herein, Defendant, in its labeling of the Product, makes "false [and] misleading advertising claim[s]," as it deceives consumers as to the flavor composition and amount 10 of vanilla in the Product. 11 In reliance on these false and misleading advertising claims, Plaintiff and members 12 of the Class purchased and used the Product without the knowledge that the Product did not get its 13 14 vanilla taste from vanilla beans. 15 144. Defendant knew or should have known that its labeling and marketing was likely to 16 deceive consumers. 17 As a result, Plaintiff and the Class are entitled to injunctive and equitable relief, 145. 18 restitution, and an order for the disgorgement of the funds by which Defendant was unjustly 19 enriched. 20 FOURTH CLAIM 21 (ON BEHALF OF THE CALIFORNIA CLASS) 22 (Violation of Cal. Civ. Code § 1750 et seg. – California's Consumer Legal Remedies Act "CLRA") 23 146. Plaintiff incorporates by reference all of the allegations of the preceding paragraphs 24 as if fully set forth herein. 25 26 147. Plaintiff brings this claim individually and on behalf of the members of the California 27 Class against Defendant. 28

148. The CLRA prohibits deceptive practices in connection with the conduct of a business that provides goods, property, or services primarily for personal, family, or household purposes.

- 149. Defendant's false and misleading labeling and other policies, acts, and practices were designed to, and did, induce the purchase and use of the Product for personal, family, or household purposes by Plaintiff and Class Members, and violated and continue to violate the following sections of the CLRA:
 - a. § 1770(a)(5): representing that goods have characteristics, uses, or benefits which they do not have;
 - b. § 1770(a)(7): representing that goods are of a particular standard, quality, or grade if they are of another;
 - c. § 1770(a)(9): advertising goods with intent not to sell them as advertised; and
 - d. § 1770(a)(16): representing the subject of a transaction has been supplied in accordance with a previous representation when it has not.
- 150. Defendant profited from the sale of the falsely, deceptively, and unlawfully advertised Product to unwary consumers.
- 151. Defendant's wrongful business practices constituted, and constitute, a continuing course of conduct in violation of the CLRA.
- 152. Pursuant to the provisions of Cal. Civ. Code § 1782(a), Plaintiff will provide a letter to Defendant concurrently with the filing of this Class Action Complaint with notice of its alleged violations of the CLRA, demanding that Defendant correct such violations, and providing it with the opportunity to correct its business practices. If Defendant does not thereafter correct its business practices, Plaintiff will amend (or seek leave to amend) the complaint to add claims for monetary relief, including restitution and actual damages under the Consumers Legal Remedies Act.
- 153. Pursuant to California Civil Code § 1780, Plaintiff seeks injunctive relief, her reasonable attorney fees and costs, and any other relief that the Court deems proper.

Class Action Complaint

1	C.	For restitution and disgorgement pursuant to, without limitation, the California
2		Business & Professions Code §§ 17200, et seq., Cal Civ. Code § 1780, and Cal.
3		Civ. Code § 1750 et seq. except that no monetary relief is presently sought for
4		violations of the Consumers Legal Remedies Act;
5	D.	For declaratory and injunctive relief pursuant to, without limitation, the California
6		Business & Professions Code §§ 17200, et seq., 17500, et seq., and Cal. Civ. Code
7		§ 1750 et seq.;
8	E.	For damages, declaratory and injunctive relief pursuant to California Civil Code §
9		1780 and 1750 except that no monetary relief is presently sought for violations of
.0		the Consumers Legal Remedies Act;
1	F.	An award of compensatory damages, the amount of which is to be determined at
2		trial except that no monetary relief is presently sought for violations of the
.3		Consumers Legal Remedies Act;
4	G.	For punitive damages;
.5	Н.	For interest at the legal rate on the foregoing sums;
6	I.	For attorneys' fees;
7	J.	For costs of suit incurred; and
8	K.	For such further relief as this Court may deem just and proper.
9		JURY TRIAL DEMAND
20	Plainti	ff demands a jury trial on all causes of action so triable.
21		
22		
23		
24		
25		
26		
27		
28		

Case 4:20-cv-07570-JSW Document 1 Filed 10/28/20 Page 24 of 25

1	Dated: October 28, 2020	
2		Respectfully Submitted By:
3		SHUB LAW FIRM LLC
4 5		/s/ Jonathan Shub Jonathan Shub (State Bar No. 237708) jshub@shublawyers.com
6		Kevin Laukaitis (Pro Hac Vice to file) klaukaitis@shublawyers.com
7		134 Kings Highway E Fl 2 Haddonfield, NJ 08033
8		Telephone: (856) 772-7200 Facsimile: (856) 210-9088
9		
10		SHEEHAN & ASSOCIATES, P.C. Spencer Sheehan (Pro Hac Vice to file)
11		spencer@spencersheehan.com 60 Cuttermill Rd Ste 409
12		Great Neck, NY 11021 Telephone: (516) 268-7080
13		Facsimile: (516) 234-7800
14		GREG COLEMAN LAW PC
15		Alex Straus (State Bar No. 321366) alex@gregcolemanlaw.com
16		16748 McCormick Street Los Angeles, CA 91436
17		Telephone: (310) 450-9689 Facsimile: (310) 496-3176
18		Counsel for Plaintiff and the Proposed Class
19		
20		
21		
22		
23		
24		
25		
26		
27		
28		
	Class Action Complaint	24
	1	

Case 4:20-cv-07570-JSW_Document 1-1_Filed 10/28/20 Page 1 of 2 CIVIL COVER SHEET

The JS-CAND 44 civil cover sheet and the information contained herein neither replace nor supplement the filing and service of pleadings or other papers as required by law, except as provided by local rules of court. This form, approved in its original form by the Judicial Conference of the United States in September 1974, is required for the Clerk of Court to initiate the civil docket sheet. (SEE INSTRUCTIONS ON NEXT PAGE OF THIS FORM.)

I. (a) PLAINTIFFS

ANGELA FARVE, individually and on behalf of all others similarly situated

- (b) County of Residence of First Listed Plaintiff San Francisco (EXCEPT IN U.S. PLAINTIFF CASES)
- (c) Attorneys (Firm Name, Address, and Telephone Number)

Jonathan Shub, Esq., SHUB LAW FIRM LLC, 134 Kings Hwy. E., 2nd Floor, Haddonfield, NJ 08033, (856) 772-7200

DEFENDANTS

Blue Diamond Growers

County of Residence of First Listed Defendant (IN U.S. PLAINTIFF CASES ONLY)

Sacramento

NOTE: IN LAND CONDEMNATION CASES, USE THE LOCATION OF THE TRACT OF LAND INVOLVED.

Attorneys (If Known)

2nd Floor, Haddonfield	l, NJ 08033, (856) 772-7	200					
			III. CIT	IZENSHIP OF	PRINCI	PAL PARTIES (Place an "	'X" in One Box for Plaintiff
				Diversity Cases Only)			ox for Defendant)
1 U.S. Government Plaintif	ff 3 Federal Question				PTF	DEF	PTF DEF
1 O.S. Government Flamin	(U.S. Government No	ot a Party)	Citizen	of This State	$ \mathbf{x} ^1$	1 Incorporated or Princ	
			Citizan	of Another State	2	of Business In This S Incorporated and Prin	
 U.S. Government Defend 	lant × 4 Diversity	CD	Citizen	of Another State	2	of Business In Anothe	•
	(Indicate Citizenship o	f Parties in Item III)	Citizen	or Subject of a	3	3 Foreign Nation	6 6
			Foreign	n Country			
IV. NATURE OF S	UIT (Place an "X" in One Box	Only)					
CONTRACT	то	RTS		FORFEITURE/PE	NALTY	BANKRUPTCY	OTHER STATUTES
110 Insurance	PERSONAL INJURY	PERSONAL I	NJURY	625 Drug Related S		422 Appeal 28 USC § 158	375 False Claims Act
120 Marine	310 Airplane	365 Personal Inju	ıry – Product	Property 21 US	SC § 881	423 Withdrawal 28 USC	376 Qui Tam (31 USC
130 Miller Act	315 Airplane Product Liability	Liability		690 Other		§ 157	§ 3729(a))
140 Negotiable Instrument	320 Assault, Libel & Slander	367 Health Care/		LABOR		PROPERTY RIGHTS	400 State Reapportionment
150 Recovery of	330 Federal Employers'	Pharmaceuti		710 Fair Labor Star	dards Act	820 Copyrights	410 Antitrust
Overpayment Of Veteran's Benefits	Liability	Injury Produ	*	720 Labor/Manager	nent	830 Patent	430 Banks and Banking
	340 Marine	368 Asbestos Per Product Liab		Relations	ľ	835 Patent—Abbreviated New	450 Commerce
151 Medicare Act	345 Marine Product Liability	PERSONAL PR		740 Railway Labor	Act	Drug Application	460 Deportation
152 Recovery of Defaulted Student Loans (Excludes	350 Motor Vehicle	× 370 Other Fraud	OFEKIY	751 Family and Me	dical	840 Trademark	470 Racketeer Influenced &
Veterans)	355 Motor Vehicle Product		dina	Leave Act	ļ	880 Defend Trade Secrets	Corrupt Organizations
153 Recovery of	Liability	371 Truth in Lene 380 Other Person	_	790 Other Labor Li	· 1.	Act of 2016	480 Consumer Credit
Overpayment	360 Other Personal Injury	Damage	ai Property	791 Employee Retin		SOCIAL SECURITY	485 Telephone Consumer Protection Act
of Veteran's Benefits	362 Personal Injury -Medical	385 Property Dar	nage Product	Income Securit	y Act	861 HIA (1395ff)	490 Cable/Sat TV
160 Stockholders' Suits	Malpractice	Liability		IMMIGRATI	ON	862 Black Lung (923)	850 Securities/Commodities/
190 Other Contract	CIVIL RIGHTS	PRISONER PET	TITIONS	462 Naturalization		863 DIWC/DIWW (405(g))	Exchange
195 Contract Product Liability	440 Other Civil Rights			Application		864 SSID Title XVI	890 Other Statutory Actions
196 Franchise		HABEAS CO		465 Other Immigrat	tion	865 RSI (405(g))	891 Agricultural Acts
REAL PROPERTY	441 Voting	463 Alien Detain		Actions	-	FEDERAL TAX SUITS	893 Environmental Matters
210 Land Condemnation	442 Employment 443 Housing/	510 Motions to V Sentence	acate			870 Taxes (U.S. Plaintiff or	895 Freedom of Information
220 Foreclosure	Accommodations	530 General				Defendant)	Act
230 Rent Lease & Ejectment	445 Amer, w/Disabilities—	535 Death Penalt	. ,			871 IRS-Third Party 26 USC	896 Arbitration
240 Torts to Land	Employment	OTHE	•		Ī	§ 7609	899 Administrative Procedure
245 Tort Product Liability	446 Amer, w/Disabilities-Other	540 Mandamus &				3	Act/Review or Appeal of
290 All Other Real Property	448 Education		e Oulei				Agency Decision
		550 Civil Rights 555 Prison Condi					950 Constitutionality of State Statutes
		560 Civil Detaine					l
		Conditions o					
		Confinement	_				
V. OBIODI							
	n "X" in One Box Only)	D 1- 1 C	A Deles		C 1 C	C Mark Parks	0.36.10.15.23.4
X 1 Original 2 Proceeding		Remanded from Appellate Court	4 Reinst Reope		sferred from ther District		8 Multidistrict sfer Litigation—Direct File
Trocccumg	State Court	Appenate Court	ксорс	neu mo	inci District	(specify) Lingarion Trans	ner Engacion Direct i ne
THE CATTON ON C'	te the U.S. Civil Statute under	unhigh von 611	n o (D)	14 . 1			
VII CHOOL OI			ug (Do not ci	te jurisaictionai statut	es uniess aiv	versity).	
ACTION 28 USC § 1332 - Diversity of Citizenship							
Brief description of cause: Consumer Class Action for mislabeling of Vanilla content							
				Content			
VII. REQUESTED I	N CHECK IF THIS IS A	CLASS ACTION	I DEM.	AND \$ 5,000,000	.00	CHECK YES only if dem	anded in complaint:
COMPLAINT: UNDER RULE 23, Fed. R. Civ. P. JURY DEMAND: X Yes No							
VIII. RELATED CAS	SE(S), JUDGE			DOCKET	מממאוו זו.		
	IF ANY (See instructions): DOCKET NUMBER						
	·						
IX. DIVISIONAL ASSIGNMENT (Civil Local Rule 3-2)							

(Place an "X" in One Box Only)

× SAN FRANCISCO/OAKLAND

EUREKA-MCKINLEYVILLE

SAN JOSE

INSTRUCTIONS FOR ATTORNEYS COMPLETING CIVIL COVER SHEET FORM JS-CAND 44

Authority For Civil Cover Sheet. The JS-CAND 44 civil cover sheet and the information contained herein neither replaces nor supplements the filings and service of pleading or other papers as required by law, except as provided by local rules of court. This form, approved in its original form by the Judicial Conference of the United States in September 1974, is required for the Clerk of Court to initiate the civil docket sheet. Consequently, a civil cover sheet is submitted to the Clerk of Court for each civil complaint filed. The attorney filing a case should complete the form as follows:

- **I. a) Plaintiffs-Defendants.** Enter names (last, first, middle initial) of plaintiff and defendant. If the plaintiff or defendant is a government agency, use only the full name or standard abbreviations. If the plaintiff or defendant is an official within a government agency, identify first the agency and then the official, giving both name and title.
- b) County of Residence. For each civil case filed, except U.S. plaintiff cases, enter the name of the county where the first listed plaintiff resides at the time of filing. In U.S. plaintiff cases, enter the name of the county in which the first listed defendant resides at the time of filing. (NOTE: In land condemnation cases, the county of residence of the "defendant" is the location of the tract of land involved.)
- c) Attorneys. Enter the firm name, address, telephone number, and attorney of record. If there are several attorneys, list them on an attachment, noting in this section "(see attachment)."
- II. Jurisdiction. The basis of jurisdiction is set forth under Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 8(a), which requires that jurisdictions be shown in pleadings. Place an "X" in one of the boxes. If there is more than one basis of jurisdiction, precedence is given in the order shown below.
 - (1) United States plaintiff. Jurisdiction based on 28 USC §§ 1345 and 1348. Suits by agencies and officers of the United States are included here.
 - (2) <u>United States defendant</u>. When the plaintiff is suing the United States, its officers or agencies, place an "X" in this box.
 - (3) Federal question. This refers to suits under 28 USC § 1331, where jurisdiction arises under the Constitution of the United States, an amendment to the Constitution, an act of Congress or a treaty of the United States. In cases where the U.S. is a party, the U.S. plaintiff or defendant code takes precedence, and box 1 or 2 should be marked.
 - (4) <u>Diversity of citizenship</u>. This refers to suits under 28 USC § 1332, where parties are citizens of different states. When Box 4 is checked, the citizenship of the different parties must be checked. (See Section III below; **NOTE: federal question actions take precedence over diversity cases.)**
- III. Residence (citizenship) of Principal Parties. This section of the JS-CAND 44 is to be completed if diversity of citizenship was indicated above. Mark this section for each principal party.
- IV. Nature of Suit. Place an "X" in the appropriate box. If the nature of suit cannot be determined, be sure the cause of action, in Section VI below, is sufficient to enable the deputy clerk or the statistical clerk(s) in the Administrative Office to determine the nature of suit. If the cause fits more than one nature of suit, select the most definitive.
- V. Origin. Place an "X" in one of the six boxes.
 - (1) Original Proceedings. Cases originating in the United States district courts.
 - (2) Removed from State Court. Proceedings initiated in state courts may be removed to the district courts under Title 28 USC § 1441. When the petition for removal is granted, check this box.
 - (3) Remanded from Appellate Court. Check this box for cases remanded to the district court for further action. Use the date of remand as the filing date.
 - (4) Reinstated or Reopened. Check this box for cases reinstated or reopened in the district court. Use the reopening date as the filing date.
 - (5) <u>Transferred from Another District</u>. For cases transferred under Title 28 USC § 1404(a). Do not use this for within district transfers or multidistrict litigation transfers.
 - (6) Multidistrict Litigation Transfer. Check this box when a multidistrict case is transferred into the district under authority of Title 28 USC § 1407. When this box is checked, do not check (5) above.
 - (8) Multidistrict Litigation Direct File. Check this box when a multidistrict litigation case is filed in the same district as the Master MDL docket.
 - Please note that there is no Origin Code 7. Origin Code 7 was used for historical records and is no longer relevant due to changes in statute.
- VI. Cause of Action. Report the civil statute directly related to the cause of action and give a brief description of the cause. Do not cite jurisdictional statutes unless diversity. Example: U.S. Civil Statute: 47 USC § 553. Brief Description: Unauthorized reception of cable service.
- VII. Requested in Complaint. Class Action. Place an "X" in this box if you are filing a class action under Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 23.
 - <u>Demand</u>. In this space enter the actual dollar amount being demanded or indicate other demand, such as a preliminary injunction.
 - Jury Demand. Check the appropriate box to indicate whether or not a jury is being demanded.
- VIII. Related Cases. This section of the JS-CAND 44 is used to identify related pending cases, if any. If there are related pending cases, insert the docket numbers and the corresponding judge names for such cases.
- IX. Divisional Assignment. If the Nature of Suit is under Property Rights or Prisoner Petitions or the matter is a Securities Class Action, leave this section blank. For all other cases, identify the divisional venue according to Civil Local Rule 3-2: "the county in which a substantial part of the events or omissions which give rise to the claim occurred or in which a substantial part of the property that is the subject of the action is situated."

Date and Attorney Signature. Date and sign the civil cover sheet.